
 
 

 
West Northamptonshire Council 

www.westnorthants.gov.uk  

Daventry Local Area Planning 
Committee 

A meeting of the Daventry Local Area Planning Committee will be held 
at the Council Chamber, Lodge Road, Daventry NN11 4FP on 

Wednesday 8 September 2021 at 6.00 pm 
 

 

Agenda 
  

1.  Apologies for Absence and Appointment of Substitute Members  

 

2.  Declarations of Interest  

Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which they 
may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 

 

3.  Minutes (Pages 5 - 8) 

To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on 4th August 2021. 

 

4.  Chair's Announcements  

To receive communications from the Chair. 

 

Planning Applications 

5.  Planning Application - DA/2021/0086 Daventry (Pages 13 - 24) 

 

6.  Urgent Business  

The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any items of urgent business 
being admitted to the agenda. 

 

7.  Exclusion of Press and Public  

In respect of the following items the Chairman may move the resolution set out below, 
on the grounds that if the public were present it would be likely that exempt 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



   

information (information regarded as private for the purposes of the Local 
Government Act 1972) would be disclosed to them: The Committee is requested to 
resolve: “That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of business on the grounds that if 
the public were present it would be likely that exempt information under Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act of the descriptions against each item would be disclosed to 
them” 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Catherine Whitehead 
Proper Officer 
31 August 2021 
 
 

Daventry Local Area Planning Committee Members: 

Councillor Kevin Parker (Chair) 

 

Councillor Alan Chantler (Vice-Chair) 

 

Councillor Daniel Cribbin Councillor Rupert Frost 

Councillor Lauryn Harrington-Carter Councillor Rosie Humphreys 

Councillor Daniel Lister Councillor Peter Matten 

Councillor Wendy Randall  
 
 

Information about this Agenda 

 
Apologies for Absence 
Apologies for absence and the appointment of substitute Members should be notified to 
democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk prior to the start of the meeting.  
 
 
Declarations of Interest 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the start 
of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item 
 
 
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & 
Supplementary Estimates 
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax 
must declare that fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget 
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the 
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax. 
 
 
Evacuation Procedure Page 2

mailto:democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk


If a continuous fire alarm sounds you must evacuate the building via the nearest available 
fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the assembly area as directed by 
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.  
 
 
Access to Meetings 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or 
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 
 
 
Mobile Phones 
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off. 
 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
If you have any queries about this agenda please contact Marina Watkins / Jeverly Findlay, 
Democratic Services via the following:  
 
Tel: 01327 302236 / 01327 302324 
Email: democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk  
 
Or by writing to:  
 
West Northamptonshire Council 
One Angel Square 
Angel Street 
Northampton 
NN1 1ED 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Daventry Local Area Planning Committee 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Daventry Local Area Planning Committee held at Council 
Chamber, Lodge Road, Daventry NN11 4FP on Wednesday 4 August 2021 at 6.00 
pm. 
 
Present Councillor Kevin Parker (Chair) 

Councillor Alan Chantler (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillor Rupert Frost 

Councillor Rosie Humphreys 
Councillor Daniel Lister 
Councillor Peter Matten 
 

Apologies 
for 
Absence: 
 

Councillor Daniel Cribbin 
Councillor Lauryn Harrington-Carter 
Councillor Wendy Randall 

 
8. Declarations of Interest  

 
No declarations of interest were declared. 

 
9. Minutes  

 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the Minutes of the Daventry Local Area Planning Committee of 9th June 2021 be 
approved and signed as a correct record. 
 

10. Planning application DA/2020/0783 Barby  
 
Consideration was given to the report detailing the planning application which had 
been previously circulated.  
 
DA/2020/0783 BARBY – Construction of 3 dwellings and associated work (access 
from Balding Close) – Land to rear of 25B Daventry Road, Barby 
 
The Senior Planning Officer outlined the application for 3 detached dwellings, one of 
which was a bungalow. The site lay within the confines of the village and was 
surrounded by residential development and consented development. The site was 
not considered to be important open space and in principle the proposal was deemed 
to be in accordance with the policies of the local development plan. In October 2020 
an application had been submitted for 4 four bedroom dwellings which had resulted in 
objections being raised regarding the density and the poor mix of properties. The 
applicant had amended the application in light of these concerns to what was now 
proposed. The new mix of dwellings was consistent with the housing needs survey 
for the village carried out in 2019. Although objections had been received that the 
development would be overcrowded, Officers considered that the density was 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Daventry Local Area Planning Committee - 4 August 2021 
 

comparable with nearby housing and complied with the Neighbourhood Development 
Plan. Access to the site would be through Balding Close which would need to be 
widened to meet adoptable standards and the Highway Authority had raised no 
objections to the application. Concerns had been raised by residents regarding the 
surface water drainage and waterlogging of the nearby gardens; the Council’s 
Engineer considered that the proposed new drainage system could improve this 
situation. 
 
Late representations had been received since the publication of the agenda, which 
had been circulated to Members. 
 
Ms Jones spoke against the application, Mr Gee spoke on behalf of the Parish 
Council and Mr Smith, the agent, addressed the Committee. 
 
Councillor Alan Chantler stated that he had called-in the application as he had been 
contacted by the neighbours to the site. Councillor Chantler acknowledged the results 
of the housing needs survey but pointed out that the housing land supply in the old 
district area had been met (although this did not prevent developments being 
approved). Councillor Chantler considered that the proposal did not accord wholly 
with the Neighbourhood Development Plan due to overcrowding and overlooking and 
there would be a lack of amenity space as the new buildings would be too close to 
the neighbouring properties. Councillor Rosie Humphreys concurred with these 
concerns and added that the environmental improvements of the application were not 
clear and that there would be no net gain in biodiversity. Councillor Humphreys 
considered that the concerns raised regarding the highway needed further 
examination due to the 90 degree bend.  
 
In response, the Senior Planning Officer advised that the Highway Authority had 
raised no technical objections to the solution proposed by the developer and had 
proposed a detailed condition. With regard to the drainage condition, further details 
were also required. Therefore it would be difficult to refuse the application on these 
technical grounds. With regard to the housing land supply, although this had been 
met, local authorities needed to maintain a supply of housing for the 5 year rolling 
programme. There was also a national drive for the provision of housing in the 
National Planning Policy Framework.  
 
Councillor Rupert Frost considered that the amenity of local residents would be 
adversely affected by the proposal. The Senior Planning Officer pointed out that it 
was quite usual in rows of houses to be able to look into each other’s gardens but 
accepted that it was a judgement call. In response to an enquiry, the Senior Planning 
Officer advised that in plot 3 the first floor to the end of the boundary was 8.5 metres. 
The Council’s Solicitor added that there were thousands of developments across the 
country with similar distances between properties. 
 
Councillor Alan Chantler proposed that the application be refused as it would 
adversely affect the amenity space of the neighbours and as it was against policy R1 
in the Joint Core Strategy and policy RA2; because it would not constitute an 
environmental improvement or contribute to the retention of local services and 
because it was against policy ENV10 due to scale and density. This was seconded 

Page 6



Daventry Local Area Planning Committee - 4 August 2021 
 

by Councillor Rosie Humphries and on being put to the meeting was declared carried 
with 4 voting in favour and 2 against. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the application be refused for the following reasons: 
 
The proposal does not constitute an environmental improvement due to the proposed 
layout and height, and particularly short gardens, which would result in overlooking 
from the proposed two storey units onto existing neighbouring gardens to the 
detriment of the amenity that the occupants of those properties might reasonably 
expect to enjoy. This is contrary to policies R1(D) and R1(i) of the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, policies RA2C(vi) and ENV10A(viii) of the 
Settlements and Countryside Local Plan and policy BO-GP1(c) of the Barby and 
Onley Neighbourhood Development Plan. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 6.50 pm 
 
 

 Chair:   

   
 Date:  

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 

PLANNING AGENDA 
 
 
 

08-Sep-2021 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
 
“The background papers relating to reports on planning applications 
and which are open to public inspection under Section 100D of the 
Local Government Act 1972 consist of all written responses to 
consultations made by the Local Planning Authority in connection 
with planning applications referred to in the reports.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please note that the order of items discussed on this agenda may be 
subject to change and you are advised to be in attendance from the 
beginning of the meeting to hear and/or speak on a particular item. 

 
 
  

Page 9

Agenda Annex



  

List of Planning Applications on this Agenda 
 
 

Application Number Location 
 

WND/2021/0086 DAVENTRY 
  
The latest version of the National Planning Policy Framework was published 
and came into force on 20 July 2021 and took immediate effect for decision 
making on planning applications superseding the previous version. 
 
Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined 
in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. The National Planning Policy Framework must be taken 
into account in preparing the development plan, and is a material 
consideration in planning decisions. Planning policies and decisions must also 
reflect relevant international obligations and statutory requirements.  
 
The policies in the Framework are material considerations which should be 
taken into account in dealing with applications. 
 
The presumption in favour of sustainable development remains: 
 
For decision-taking this means:  

 approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date 

development plan without delay; or  

 where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies 
which are most important for determining the application are out-of-
date, granting permission unless:  

i. the application of policies in the Framework that protect areas or assets of 
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development 
proposed; or  
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework 
taken as a whole.  
 
Paragraph 219 states:  
 
…existing policies should not be considered out-of-date simply because they 
were adopted or made prior to the publication of this Framework. Due weight 
should be given to them, according to their degree of consistency with this 
Framework (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).  
 
In the case of the Daventry Area of West Northamptonshire Council, this 
includes the West Northants Joint Core Strategy 20 July 2021, and the various 
neighbourhood plans that had been made before 19 February 2019. 
 

Page 10



  

Significantly, following the decision of the Council to adopt the Settlements 
and Countryside Local Plan (part 2) for Daventry District on 20th February 
2020 the saved policies of the Daventry District Local Plan 1997 now fall away 
as they are superseded. Adopted supplementary planning documents and 
guidance can continue to be given weight where they are in accordance with 
the new Local Plan and the NPPF and National Planning Guidance. 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number WND/2021/0086   
 
Location Description 

 
8, THE ROWANS, DAVENTRY, 
NORTHAMPTONSHIRE, NN11 0QA 

 
Site Details 

 
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING GARAGE. 
CONSTRUCTION OF SIDE EXTENSION INCLUDING 
FRONT ROOF LIGHTS AND REAR DORMER TO 
FORM HABITABLE ROOMS IN ROOF SPACE. 

 
 
Applicant 

 
 
MRS HARRISON 

 
Agent 
 
Case Officer 

 
REBECCA WALKER, CHAPMAN DESIGN 
 
O BILLING 

 
Ward 
 
Reason for Referral 
 
Committee Date 
 
 
 

 
DAVENTRY WEST WARD 
 
CALL IN 
 
8 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT PERMISSION SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 
 
Proposal  
The application seeks the construction of a single storey side extension and rear 
dormer and insertion of front roof lights to provide habitable rooms in the roof 
space. The existing single storey garage is to be demolished. The extended property 
will provide a total of three bedrooms in the roof space with living accommodation 
on the ground floor. 
 
Consultations (original proposal) 
The following consultees have raised objections to the original proposal: 

 Daventry Town Council 
 

The following consultees have raised no objections to the original proposal: 
 Highways  

 
The following consultees are in support of the original proposal: 

 None 
 

7 letters of objection have been received and 0 letters of support have been 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



received with regards to the original proposal.  
 
Re-consultation (amended proposal) 

 
Daventry Town Council and neighbours have been re-consulted regarding the 
amended proposal. Daventry Town Council have no objection to the amended 
proposal. A further 2 letters of objection have also been received from neighbours 
regarding the amended proposal. 
 
Conclusion  
The application has been assessed against the relevant policies in the NPPF, the 
adopted Local Plan and other relevant guidance as listed in detail at Section 8 of the 
report.  
 
The key issues arising from the application details are:  

 Principle of Development 
 Design and the impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 Overdevelopment of the application site 
 Impact on neighbouring residential amenity 
 Highways and parking 

 
The report looks into the key planning issues in detail, and Officers conclude that the 
negotiated amended proposal is acceptable subject to conditions.  

 
Members are advised that the above is a summary of the proposals and key 
issues contained in the main report below which provides full details of all 
consultation responses, planning policies, the Officer's assessment and 
recommendations, and Members are advised that this summary should be 
read in conjunction with the detailed report. 
 
MAIN REPORT  
 
APPLICATION SITE AND LOCALITY  
 
The application site comprises a semi-detached bungalow situated towards the end of 
the cul-de-sac of The Rowans which is located to the north of Daventry town centre. 
The Rowans is accessed off Ashdown Road and forms part of the Daneholme 
residential estate, with Daneholme Park to the north. The property is surrounded by 
other residential properties and their associated gardens and benefits from a detached 
garage to the side, a small rear garden, and driveway parking.  
 
The Rowans is defined by predominately uniform semi-detached bungalows separated 
by side driveways with small front and gardens. 
 
The application site is located within the Outer Urban (Parish) area of Daventry as 
defined by the Daventry Town and Parish Design Statement. 
 
CONSTRAINTS 

Page 14



 
None. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

 
Initially, the application sought the demolition of the existing garage and the 
construction of a two-storey side extension along with front and rear dormers to 
provide habitable rooms within the roof space. The proposal has been scaled down 
during the application. The final version is for a part two-storey and part single-storey 
side extension with a rear box dormer and front roof lights. The existing garage will 
still be demolished. 
 
The extended property will provide a total of three bedrooms within the roof space, 
one en-suite and a bathroom. The ground floor will provide living accommodation, 
including an open plan kitchen/dining area, lounge, hall, study, and utility. 
 
The extension will project from the side of the property by a total width of 
approximately 3.4 metres with a depth of approximately 8.6 metres. The first-floor 
extension will have a width of approximately 2 metres, with the ground floor element 
making up the remaining 1.4 metres. The two-storey part will match the existing ridge 
height and an eaves height, whilst the single-storey element will have a maximum 
height of approximately 4.9 metres and a maximum eaves height of approximately 
3.2 metres. The extension includes a personnel door and ground floor window on the 
eastern side elevation, new windows on the front and rear ground floor elevations and 
aluminium bifold doors that will serve the kitchen/dining area to the rear.  
 
The extension will have brick and rendered elevations and a dual pitched concrete 
tiled roof to match existing. The tiles from the rear of the property will be reused on 
the new front roof pitch. The remaining doors will be uPVC and the windows will have 
white uPVC frames. 
 
The rear dormer measures approximately 3.5 metres deep, 7.8 metres wide and 2.3 
metres high and includes three new rear windows. Three new roof lights are proposed 
on the front elevation.  
 
A set of steps will provide access to a new front door with an adjacent obscure glazed 
window to serve the WC. 

 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  

 
The following planning history is considered relevant to the current proposal:  

 

Application Ref. Proposal Decision 

DB/56/50 Change of use agricultural to housing estate Approved with 
conditions 

DB/58/28 Housing layout and type plans Approved with 
conditions 

Page 15



DB/61/49 Erection of five pairs of bungalows Undetermined 

 
We are not aware of any permitted development rights being removed for the subject 
property as part of the above permissions. 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY AND GUIDANCE 

 
Statutory Duty 

 
Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 

 
Development Plan 
 
The Development Plan comprises the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy 
Local Plan (Part 1) which was formally adopted by the Joint Strategic Planning 
Committee on 15th December 2014, and which provides the strategic planning policy 
framework for the District to 2029, the adopted Settlement and Countryside Local Plan 
(Part 2) (2020) and adopted Neighbourhood Plans. There are no neighbourhood plans 
which cover the Outer Urban (Parish) of Daventry. The relevant planning policies of 
the statutory Development Plan are set out below: 
 
West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (LPP1) 

 
The relevant policies of the LPP1 are: 

 
 SA – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
 S1 – Distribution of Development  
 S10 – Sustainable Development Principles 

 
Settlements and Countryside Local Plan (Part 2) (LPP2) 

 
The relevant policies of the LPP2 are: 

 SP1 – Daventry District Spatial Strategy 
 ENV10 - Design 

 
Material Considerations 

 
Below is a list of the relevant Material Planning Considerations 

 
 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 
 Daventry Town and Parish Design Statement (DTPDS) 
 DDC Designing House Extensions Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
 Northamptonshire Parking Standards Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 

 
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION 

Page 16



 
Below is a summary of the consultation responses received at the time of writing this 
report.  

 

Consultee 
Name 

Position Comment 

Daventry 
Town Council  

Objection 
(original 
proposal) 

- Overdevelopment of the site. 
- Scale and design are not in keeping with the 

locality and would not promote or reinforce local 
distinctiveness. 

- Potential overlooking from the front dormers 
affecting neighbouring amenity and previous 
applications for front dormers have been refused 
within the locality. 

- The placement of the parking provision is likely 
to result in unacceptable on-street parking 
causing an obstruction and is contrary to 
paragraph 109 of the NPPF. 

- On-street parking would also result in mobility 
issues for the residents of The Rowans. 

- The separation between the extension and 
neighbouring property is not adequate and would 
result in a loss of light to the adjacent dwelling 
(no.6 The Rowans). 

- Noise and disturbance from the building works 
would impact neighbouring properties.  

Highways No 
observation 

- No observations. 

Daventry 
Town Council 

No objection 
(amended 
proposal) 

- Size reduction was noted as part of the amended 
application. 

- Revision to the design more considerate to the 
locality. 

- No objection in principle to the amended 
application and would support the planning 
officer’s advice. 

 
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY 
 
Below is a summary of the third party and neighbour responses received at the time 
of writing this report. 
 
There have been 7 letters of objections received regarding the original submission 
raising the following comments: 

 
 Increase in traffic and parking pressures along The Rowans would result in 

obstructions to the highway/driveways, particularly if the property has 4/5 
bedrooms that are rented out.  

Page 17



 Overdevelopment of the plot would be out of keeping with the character and 
appearance of the surrounding area and neighbouring properties. A street 
scene drawing should be provided to demonstrate the relationship to the 
neighbouring properties. 

 Design concerns over any change to the existing roof/ridge height and visual 
impact of the new side elevation. 

 Overlooking from the front and rear dormers. 
 Insufficient distance between the subject property and adjacent dwelling at 

no.6 The Rowans resulting in loss of light/poor outlook. 
 Noise and disturbance because of the construction works and internal 

reconfiguration of the subject property. 
 Party Wall procedures must be followed if the development goes ahead. 

 
There have been 2 letters of objections received regarding the amended proposal 
raising the following comments: 
 

 Set precedent for future development that would change the character of the 
locality. 

 Appearance would look ‘odd’ set against the neighbouring dwelling and would 
be different to any other properties along The Rowans. 

 Increase in traffic and parking pressures along The Rowans. 
 Noise and disturbance because of the construction works and internal 

reconfiguration of the subject property. 
 Party Wall procedures must be followed if the development goes ahead. 

 
APPRAISAL  
 
Principle of Development 

 
1. LPP1 Policy SA requires Councils to take a positive approach that reflects the 

presumption in favour of sustainable development and to work proactively with 
applicants to secure development that improves the economic, social, and 
environmental conditions in the area. 
 

2. LPP1 Policy S1 allows for appropriate development of a lesser scale to be located 
in and adjoining the sub-regional centre of Daventry town. Moreover, LPP2 
Policy SP1 focuses development at Daventry town and promotes development 
that protects and enhancing the built and natural environment along with the 
District’s heritage assets and its open countryside. 
 

3. Accounting for the above policy context and the location of the application site 
within the Outer Urban (Parish) area of Daventry town centre, it is considered 
that the principle of development should be supported, subject to detail.  

Design and the impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 

4. Objectors felt that the original proposal was over-development and was not in 
keeping with the prevailing character of the street scene or the locality. The 
Rowans is defined by predominately uniform semi-detached bungalows and the 

Page 18



original proposal was considered to cause harm to this character and the 
appearance of the street scene. The development was deemed to be of an 
inappropriate design, scale and massing and did not promote or reinforce local 
distinctiveness. 
 

5. The design of the proposal has been amended by reducing its overall size and 
scale, removing the front dormers, and altering the rear dormers. The overall 
width of the side extension has been reduced, the front elevation has been set 
back and the scale of the two-storey element has been reduced to include a 
split storey design. The amendment has resulted in the separation between the 
adjacent dwelling at no.6 (to the east) and the subject property being increased 
to 6.374 metres, as opposed to the 5.6 metres proposed under the original 
submission. The distance from the two-storey element to no.6 has also 
increased to 7.9 metres from 5.6 metres. 
 

6. Given these amendments, it is considered that the scale and massing of the 
enlarged property is now acceptable, and the proposal no longer constitutes 
overdevelopment. An adequate gap between the neighbouring dwelling and the 
subject property will be maintained for there to be no terracing effect. This has 
been demonstrated on drawing number 3886-07 and the gap of 6.374 metres 
is similar to the distance between numbers 2 and 4 The Rowans (measured at 
the narrowest point). Moreover, the applicant’s agent has confirmed that a 1.8 
metre boundary fence will be erected which will further demonstrate the 
separation.  
 

7. The proposed extension and rear dormer will use materials that match the 
existing dwellinghouse which accords with the Designing House Extensions SPG 
and DTPDS. This allows for the development to better blend in with the host 
dwelling and it is understood that the tiles on the front roof plane will be 
reclaimed from the rear to ensure a better match. The use of matching materials 
and the setting back of the extension further reduces the visual impact on the 
street scene. 
 

8. The existing garage does not have any architectural merit and its removal will 
not adversely alter the appearance of the street scene. The parking merits of 
the scheme are discussed in detail below. 
 

9. Concerns have been raised over changes to the height/pitch of the existing roof 
in relation to the attached dwelling and the poor visual outlook that a brick gable 
end would have on the adjacent dwelling to the east. The agent has confirmed 
that the roof height of the existing dwelling will not be changed. Moreover, the 
relationship with the attached dwelling has been demonstrated on the street 
scene drawing and it is considered that this is acceptable. The increase to the 
gap with the adjacent dwelling and the setting back of the first floor reduces 
the visual impact of the gable end wall, which would be de minimus in any case. 
 

10. Objectors also felt that the loss of garden space for parking at the front of the 
property would be unattractive. The site plan shows that an element of the front 

Page 19



garden will not be used for parking and the current front of the property has a 
similar parking area to that being proposed. Furthermore, the design of the 
proposed parking provisions would not look out of place in the street scene. 
 

11. Concerns have also been raised that the proposed development could set a 
precedent for future development that could change the character of the 
locality. Each application is considered on a case-by-case basis and in this 
instance, it is deemed that the proposed development will not cause harm to 
the character and appearance of the locality or the street scene. 
 

12. The amended proposal is of an appropriate design, scale, height, and massing 
with relation to the existing dwelling and its surroundings. It is considered to 
accord with LPP2 Policy ENV10, particularly paragraph A ii and iii. Moreover, it 
has regard to the guidance within the Designing House Extensions SPG that 
promotes the use of matching materials, similar roof design and pitch and set 
back front elevations. 

 
Impact on neighbouring residential amenity 
 

13. Objectors felt that the original proposal would cause overlooking from both the 
rear and front dormers and there was an insufficient gap between the subject 
property and no.6 that did not meet the Designing House Extensions SPG which 
would result in a loss of light.  
 

14. As discussed above, this gap has been increased to 6.374 metres at ground floor 
level and 7.9 metres to the first-floor gable end. The Designing House 
Extensions SPG outlines that a gap of 12 metres should be maintained between 
the window of a habitable room and a blank gable wall. The proposed separation 
does not meet the 12-metre guidance; however, it is worth noting that the 
existing gap is only approximately 10 metres. Moreover, the orientation of no.6 
results in the front elevation being set forward of the subject property and 
therefore the bedroom window of no.6 is not directly in line with the proposed 
side elevation. 
 

15. Given that the gap has been increased and no further concerns have been raised 
regarding the impact on loss of light following re-consultation, it is considered 
that a sufficient gap will be maintained between the two properties for there to 
be no adverse impact on the availability of light into the adjacent dwelling. 
Furthermore, the extension is well contained within the 45 and 60-degree areas 
as defined by the Designing House Extension SPG. 
 

16. The front dormers have been removed from the amended proposal and it is 
considered that the height of the roof lights at 1.8 metres from the floor level is 
sufficient to restrict any overlooking.  
 

17. The original proposal included three smaller rear dormers with dual pitched 
roofs. These have been amended to create one single box dormer to match the 
adjacent properties and to provide sufficient headroom for the bedrooms. The 

Page 20



size of the middle window has also been reduced. The rear dormer still has the 
potential to overlook the properties to the north. A minimum gap of 
approximately 10.2 metres is maintained between these properties and the rear 
ground floor elevation of the subject property. Moreover, the rear boundary 
currently comprises a low-level picket fence allowing views into the rear garden 
of the property immediately to the north which will be seen from the glazed bi-
fold doors on the ground floor as well as the first-floor dormer. 
 

18. Having visited the site, the planning officer noted that there was existing mutual 
overlooking at ground floor level between these properties along with 
overlooking from the rear dormers of no.6 and 10. It is considered that as the 
rear elevation will not be brought closer to the boundary line, any increase to 
overlooking from the ground floor glazing will be minimal. It is also reasonable 
to expect that future occupiers may put a higher boundary fence to protect their 
privacy. 
 

19. Permitted development rights have not been removed from the property and 
therefore a smaller rear dormer could be built on the existing roof plane with 
similar rear windows under the permitted development regime. The current 
dormer extends over the side extension and therefore requires planning 
permission, however, the difference between these options and their impact on 
overlooking would be minimal. Given the level of existing mutual overlooking, 
distance with the rear property and permitted development fall-back position it 
is considered that on balance the rear dormer will not adversely impact on 
neighbouring residential amenity that would warrant sufficient grounds for 
refusal. 
 

20. Concerns have also been raised over potential noise issues resulting from both 
the internal reconfiguration of the property and the construction works. It has 
been suggested that soundproofing is conditioned as part of any decision and 
that the construction works should only commence after nine am. 
 

21. It would not be reasonable or enforceable to impose a planning condition to 
require soundproofing and it is considered that the internal configuration of the 
property is unlikely to cause any increase in noise issues outside what would 
normally be expected with residential use. As we understand any noise concerns 
relating to this matter would be dealt with under Building Regulations or by 
Environmental Health and are not considered to be a material planning 
consideration. 
 

22. Noise and disturbance implications resulting from the construction of a moderate 
extension would not be reasonable to be restricted by a planning condition and 
are not considered to be a material planning consideration. Any issues relating 
to the disturbance of this nature need to be reported to the Environmental 
Health Department. 
 

Page 21



23. In light of the amendments to the proposal, it is concluded that the proposed 
development will not cause harm to neighbouring residential amenity and 
therefore accords with the relevant policy, particularly LPP2 ENV10 A viii. 

 
Highways and parking 
 

24. Objectors felt that the proposed increase in the size of the property would result 
in increased traffic and parking pressures/obstruction along The Rowans and 
that if the property was to be let for 4/5 bedrooms there would not be sufficient 
off-road parking. 
 

25. The applicant’s agent has confirmed that the property will be a 3-bedroom 
dwelling and will not be used as an HMO/house share. Moreover, the submitted 
drawings show a 3-bedroom property with three parking spaces provided. The 
increase to the size of the property is by one bedroom only with two off-road 
parking spaces already provided. 
 

26. Regard has been had to the Northamptonshire Parking Standards SPG which 
outlines that for a 3-bedroom dwelling, two spaces would be required per 
dwelling plus one visitor space across the whole development. The proposed 
parking provision at the subject property accords with this policy. The three 
proposed spaces measure approximately 2.4 metres wide by 4.6 metres long. 
This is below the minimum parking space size outlined within the SPG, however, 
there is considered sufficient space for the parking provision to be increased to 
the minimum size of 2.5 metres wide by 5 metres long. 
 

27. Having visited the site the planning officer recognises that The Rowans is a small 
cul-de-sac, however, all the properties benefit from off-street parking, and this 
will remain the case for the subject dwelling. Despite concerns raised over on-
street parking and obstruction to service and emergency vehicles and the 
footpath, adequate off-street parking has been accounted for and there is no 
reason to assume that the proposal will lead to a highway obstruction. Moreover, 
the increase by one-bedroom to the property is very unlikely to generate a 
significant increase in traffic along The Rowans. 
 

28. It is concluded that adequate parking provision has been accounted for and the 
proposal will not result in an adverse impact on the highway. Moreover, the 
Local Highways Authority have been consulted and have raised no objections. 

 
Other considerations 
 

29. Concerns have been raised that any proposal should follow the Party Wall Act. 
This is not considered a material planning consideration and does not carry any 
weight in determining this application. 
 

30. In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, the applicant was 
given the opportunity to work proactively with the planning authority to achieve 
a positive outcome. In this instance, the proposed development has been 

Page 22



amended to take account of concerns raised regarding design, the impact on 
the character and appearance of the area and the impact on neighbouring 
residential amenity. 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 
31. Not applicable for this application as the development is not liable for CIL. 

 
PLANNING BALANCE AND CONCLUSION 

 
32. The site is located within the residential area of Daventry town and conforms 

with the spatial policies of the development which allow for the principle of 
residential development, and therefore extensions, within this area. 
 

33. The development has been amended to account for concerns initially raised over 
its design and the impact on the character and appearance of the street scene 
and locality. The scale, design and appearance of the proposal are now 
considered acceptable and appropriate for the site and its surroundings. 
 

34. The impact on neighbouring residential amenity is also considered acceptable 
as the proposed rear dormer/glazing and separation between the subject 
property and adjacent dwelling are deemed appropriate. 
 

35. In terms of the planning balance and given the amendments made, the above 
factors are considered to weigh in favour of the proposal and therefore it is 
recommended that the application is approved.  

 
RECOMMENDATION / CONDITIONS AND REASONS 
 
The proposed development is recommended for approval subject to the following 
conditions. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission. 

2. The materials to be used in the external surfaces of the works 
hereby permitted shall be as specified in the application. 

3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the amended plans reference: 
3889-02 ‘Proposed site plan’,  
3889-03 ‘Existing and proposed plan’, 
3889-04 ‘Proposed first floor plan’, 
3889-05 ‘Existing and proposed elevations’, 
3889-06 ‘Existing and proposed elevations’, 
3889-07 ‘Proposed street scene’ all deposited with the Local 
Planning Authority on 22 July 2021. 
 

Page 23



REASONS 
1. To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004). 

2. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the materials 
are appropriate to the appearance of the dwelling. 

3. To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with 
agreed amendments. 

 
NOTES 

1. As required by Article 35 of the Town and Country (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as Amended) the 
following statement applies: 
 
In dealing with this planning application the Local Planning Authority 
have worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner with a 
view to seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to the 
consideration of this planning application. 

Page 24


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	 Planning Applications
	5 Planning Application - DA/2021/0086 Daventry

